Oregon State University

Faculty Senate

Faculty Senate » Minutes » 1952 Minutes

Please note that some links go to websites not managed by the Faculty Senate. As such, some links may no longer be functional or may lead to pages that have since been changed or updated.

1952 Minutes

Minutes for Faculty Senate meetings can be accessed by clicking on the desired date. Minutes are distributed to Senators for approval each month. Contact the Faculty Senate Office at or 541-737-4344 for more information.

- January 10
- February 14
- March 13
- April 10
- May 8
- May 28
- June 12
- October 9
- November 14
- December 11

| Home | Agendas | Bylaws | Committees | Elections | Faculty Forum Papers | Handbook | Meetings | Membership/Attendance | Minutes |

Faculty Senate, Oregon State University, Corvallis, OR 97331-6203 · 541.737.4344 Contact us with your comments, questions and feedback Copyright © 2008 Oregon State University | Disclaimer Valid xhtml.

President Strand called the Faculty Council to order in regular session at 1:00 o'clock in Room 208, Memorial Union, with the following members present: Bash, Beach, Berry, Brandon, Bullis, Campbell, Clayton, Colby, Crossen, Demuth, Dornfeld, Dunn, Engesser, Gilkey, Gleeson, Goode, Kozumplik, Langton, LeMaster, Lemon, Lunde, McCutcheon, Norton, Ordeman, Poling, Price, Reichart, Robertson, Scheel, Scott, Shideler, Smith, Snodgrass, Strand, Swygard, Tressler, Wanless, Ware, Wells, Wilkinson, Yunker. Also present: Dr. E. D. Duryea,

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of December 13, 1951 were considered and were approved.

INTRODUCTION OF NEW MEMBERS President Strand welcomed new members of the Faculty Council who were sitting with the council for the first time during their current terms.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS & EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE The annual election of officers and members of the Executive Committee was held. For Vice Chairman Dr. Florence Hupprich was the only nominee and on motion the Secretary was instructed to cast the council's unanimous ballot for Dr. Hupprich. Similarly Mr. Goode was declared elected Secretary. For the other members of the Executive Committee nominations were made as follows: elected members, Professors Dornfeld and Gilkey; appointed group (Administrative Council members), Deans Crossen and Price. Professors Bullis and Engesser served as tellers. Balloting resulted in the election of Dean Crossen and Professor Gilkey as members of the Executive Committee.

AGRICULTURAL ECONOMIC CONFERENCE During the balloting Mr. Scheel spoke of the forthcoming state-wide agricultural economic conference to be held on the campus March 27-29. He emphasized the scope and importance of the conference and said that time and facilities should be kept open in order to insure the full success of the meeting. He referred to a similar conference held in 1924 which provided the basis for the coordinated program of development of all phases of Oregon agriculture in the past quarter century.

IMPROVEMENT OF COLLEGE TEACHING President Strand commended the interest shown in improvement of college teaching by the local chapter of the American Association of University Professors. He called on Dean Gleeson to report on some aspects of progress reports on improvement of teaching by the American Society for Engineering Education and the Engineering faculty of Oregon State College. Dean Gleeson distributed copies of summaries of these reports. Points emphasized for improvement of teaching included the individualization of work, stimulation of thinking, historical perspective, utilization of student

initiative, group projects, pretesting on subject matter, teaching aids. Excerpt from report on work of A.S.E.E.:
"Most of the obstacles to better teaching, better correlation, better integration, and better motivation exist not in the educational system but in the habits, attitudes, and thoughts of faculty members." President Strand thanked Dean Gleson for his presentation.

ADJOURNMENT

The Faculty Council adjourned at 5:00 o'clock.

President Strand regular February meeting at 4:00 o'clock with the following members present:

Clayton, Colby, Dornfeld, Dunn, Engesser, Fincke (for Ware), Gilfillan, Goode, Graf, Hansen, Hupprich, Kirkendall, Le Master, Lonseth, berger (for Demuth), Poling, Read, Reichart, Smith, Snodgrass, Strand, Swygard, Terriere (for Bullis), Wanless, Winger, Wood, Yunker, Zeran.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes of the January 10, 1952 meeting were approved after correction of a name.

CAMPUS CONFERENCE ON COLLEGE TEACHING President Strand announced that plans were under way for a campus conference on college teaching on April 2-3 with Dr. Max S. Marshall of the University of California as leader. He said a general committee would be in charge of arrangements and the Faculty Council would be represented on the committee.

COOPERATIVE ARRANGEMENT WITH CAMAS PAPER SCHOOL APPROVED A recommendation from the Graduate Council providing for a cooperative arrangement with the Crown Willamette Paper Company at Camas, Washington, was considered. Students in the Camas Paper School would be graduate students in the Graduate School of Oregon State College carrying approved course work under faculty members approved as members of the Graduate Faculty of Oregon State College and would be required to complete a minimum of 15 term hours in residence on the campus, of which 12 hours must be course work. After discussion of some of the details the council on motion voted to approve the cooperative arrangement between the Crown Willamette Paper School and the Graduate School of Oregon State College.

M.F. & M.S. WITHOUT THESIS APPROVED President Strand called on Dean Hansen to outline the background considerations for offering the degrees of Master of
Forestry and Master of Science (in field of General Science)
without thesis. Both these proposals were recommendations
of the Graduate Council. Reference was made to the fact
that the Master of Education degree is offered (under "Plan
C") without thesis. No question was raised regarding the M.
F. proposal, but questions pertaining to the proposed M.S.
without thesis were discussed briefly. The fact was mentioned that science teachers in high schools, seeking salary
advancement by obtaining a master's degree, were taking the
Ed.M. without thesis in considerable numbers. Such teachers,
it was pointed out, should take courses adding to their
knowledge of the sciences; instead, under the requirements
for the Ed.M., they were taking largely education courses.

Meeting #70 - 2

President Strand said that if approval were voted to the M.S. in General Science without thesis, he would approve it on a trial basis for four or five years subject to review after that period. It was specified that completion of the M.S. in General Science without thesis would not admit to candidacy for a departmental major in one of the sciences. Mr. Goode explained that the two proposals should have come before the Faculty Council earlier but, because no Board action is necessary, they had been detached from the other curricular proposals and then unfortunately overlooked. In order to include the announcement of the M.S. without thesis in the Summer Session Catalog, immediate action was necessary. After motion, the council voted to suspend its rule that would require delay in action until the March meeting. On motion it then voted to approve the M.F. degree without thesis and the M.S. in General Science without thesis.

POLL OF STUDENT OPINION

President Strand said he was giving his consent to the operation of a poll of student opinion, under student auspices, involving about ten minutes of class time in a specified class period. He invited council members to submit questions they might wish to suggest to be included in such a poll.

AAUP STUDY OF TEACHING PROBLEMS Dr. Ronald Campbell, 1950-51 chairman of the Committee on College Teaching of the American Association of University Professors, reported on the findings of the committee. Copies of the committee report had been distributed to Faculty Council members in September. Dr. Campbell devoted his time to reviewing the committee recommendations, making comments on some of them. President Strand asked whether the council would like to discuss aspects of the report as well as similar matters presented by Dean Gleeson at the February meeting on the national and local studies of college teaching and curricular problems by engineering educators. Dean LeMaster suggested that perhaps a "sifting" committee might select recommendations on which the Faculty Council could take action. President Strand said he would pick out some of the outstanding recommendations that the Faculty Council might profitably work on.

On behalf of the Faculty Council, President Strand expressed appreciation of the reports by Dean Gleeson and Dr. Campbell.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 5:15 o'clock.

After a short coffee period arranged by Dr. Florence Hupprich the Faculty Council was called to order by President Strand at 4:00 o'clock with the following members present: Bash, Beach, Berry, Blanch, Bullis, Campbell, Carlson, Colby, Crossen, Dornfeld, Dunn, Engesser, Fincke (for Brandon), Gilfillan, Goode, Hansen, Hupprich, Langton, Ledbetter, Lemon, Lonseth, Lunde, McCutcheon, McMillan (for Ware), Moshberger (for Demuth), Ordeman, Poling, Price, Reichart, Robinson (for Snodgrass), Scheel, Scott, Smith, Strand, Tressler, Wanless, Winger, Yunker, Zeran. Also present were Professors W. R. Crooks, S. M. Dietz, J. G. Knudsen, W. A. Kozumplik, Richardson, and Sherburne.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES The minutes of the meeting of February 11, 1952, after a few verbal corrections, were declared approved.

POLICY ON HONORARY DEGREES ADOPTED Dean Crossen presented as chairman of a special committee on policy in regard to honorary degrees the following recommendation:

PART I: POLICY GOVERNING AWARD OF HONORARY DEGREES

- 1 Honorary degrees are conferred by Oregon State College only upon those persons recognized as having made outstanding contributions to the fields of science, technology, the social sciences, the humanities, or to the public welfare.
- 2 Not more than two honorary degrees may be awarded at any annual commencement of Oregon State College, and not more than five such degrees may be conferred in any five-year period.
- 3 No such recognition shall be accorded during his term of active tenure to any person holding an elective public office in the State of Oregon, to any member of the staff of Oregon State College, or to any member of the Oregon State Board of Higher Education.
- In so far as possible, each honorary degree awarded shall have a connotation in keeping with the achievements recognized, but shall not duplicate or suggest a standard earned degree awarded by any accredited college or university.

PART II: PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION FOR HONORARY DEGREES

- 1 All nominations for honorary degrees shall be submitted in writing and shall bear the signatures of not fewer than three sponsors, at least one of whom must be an alumnus of Oregon State College.
- 2 All nominations shall be sufficiently complete to permit thorough review of the qualifications of the individual proposed. In order that competent judgment may be possible, nominations should be accompanied by the following information: (a) Name, age, residence, profession or vocation of person proposed. (b) Earned and honorary degrees already held, in what fields, where attained. (c) Brief biographical sketch, including past positions and professional record, present fields of interest and the contributions made to these, writings and publications, honors and prizes received, other attainments and contributions. (d) Concise

statement of reasons for recommendation. (e) Signatures and present addresses of proposers, with year of graduation if an alumnus of Oregon State College.

3 Nominations shall be submitted to the office of the President of Oregon State College not later than March 1 of the academic year in which the honorary degree is to be conferred, and shall be transmitted by that office to the members of a special Committee on Honorary Degrees.

PART III: PROCEDURE FOR ELECTION TO HONORARY DEGREES

- 1 The Committee on Honorary Degrees shall be appointed by the President of Oregon State College and shall consist of five members, each of whom holds the rank of associate professor or higher in the staff of the College. Members of this committee shall be anonymous and shall remain so during the term of their appointment. To provide for continuity of experienced personnel, the terms of appointment of the newly organized committee shall be for one, two, three, four, and five years respectively, appointment to fill the vacancy resulting from expiration of a term of service then to be for five years.
- 2 The Committee on Honorary Degrees shall consider each nomination submitted, and shall return the nomination together with a recommendation to the office of the President within thirty days.
- 3 Recommendations of the Committee on Honorary Degrees shall be reviewed by the Administrative Council, the Faculty Council, and the President, and all recommendations for the award of honorary degrees must have the concurrence and endorsement of each before being submitted to the Chancellor and the State Board of Higher Education.

Dean Crossen commented on the recommendation and the considerations the committee had in mind. He moved the adoption of the recommendation. The motion was seconded. President Strand called for discussion and a number of points were brought up and considered. President Strand said that if the council members wished to postpone action, a vote could be delayed until a later meeting. It appeared that most of the members were ready to vote. By vote the Faculty Council then approved the recommendation on policy in awarding honorary degrees.

SUPERIOR STUDENTS

COMMITTEE ON Dr. Dietz was then called on to present a progress report of the special Committee on Superior Students. He introduced the members of the committee who were present and mentioned Dr. Sherburne, chairman of the Student Personnel Council, who had been of great help to the committee's work. He distributed copies of a sheet listing the characteristics of the superior or gifted student and a bibliography of five titles. He described the work and thinking of the committee. He said the American Association of University Professors had cooperated with the committee. Some departments have been experimenting

Meeting #71 - 3

with programs for superior students. He thought a committee in each school might be desirable. He said that the report he was giving was merely a preliminary one but the committee had reached the point of having a pattern for the future committee operation in the duty assigned to it.

ADJOURNMENT The Faculty Council adjourned at 5:00 o'clock.

President Strand called the Faculty Council to order for its regular April meeting at 4:00 o'clock. Members present were: Bash, Beach, Berry, Brandon, Campbell, Carlson, Colby, Crews (for Gilfillan), Crossen, Dixon, Dunn, Engesser, Gilkey, Gleeson, Goode, Hansen, Ledbetter, LeMaster, Lemon, Lonseth, Lunde, McCutcheon, Ordeman, Peterson (for Demuth), Price, Reichart, Richardson (for Wanless), Smith, Snodgrass, Strand, Swygard, Tressler, Ware, Wells, Wilkinson, Winger, Zeran.

NOMINATIONS FOR REVIEW AND APPEAIS COMMITTEE President Strand said that the usual election of members of the Committee on Review and Appeals had been overlooked at the January meeting. He called for nominations. The following names were proposed as candidates for the Committee on Review and Appeals: B. H. Nichols, R. R. Reichart, J. W. Sherburne, L. Q. Larse, Percy M. Gill. Members were asked to vote by mail using ballots to be supplied by the secretary.

AAUP RECOM-MENDATIONS ON TEACHING IMPROVEMENT President Strand reported on the results of his study of the recommendations of the Committee on College Teaching of the American Association of University Professors. (See Minutes of Faculty Council for February 14, 1952.) Taking into account some important recommendations which are already the function of working committees (namely, study of aims of Oregon State College, study of treatment of superior students), he mentioned the following as meriting study by the Faculty Council:

- :- "That the findings of the study regarding integration of subject matter, restriction of students to courses in specialized fields AND THE NUMBER OF ONE, TWO, AND THREE CREDIT COURSES (as contrasted with 5 credit courses) be transmitted to the Curriculum Council." On this recommendation the President commented as follows: "Outside of physical education and a few seminars, there are not many one credit courses. Two credit courses are largely confined to drawing, shop, and laboratory courses. Three credit courses are legion and characteristic of the quarter system. The fact remains, however, that many students are handicapped by the necessity of carrying 5, 6, or 7 courses."
- :- "That questions regarding the ability, preparation and attitude of our students toward learning, that the standards of achievement in the College, together with the possibilities and problems of remedial work and terminal work and terminal programs be investigated by the Faculty Council." President's comment: "The AAUP committee, I believe, regarded this as the No. 1 problem. I would not for a moment contest that evaluation: A re-study of terminal

possibilities may be quite in order. I believe that sentiment is against any so-called 'general college' for the segregation of terminal students."

:- "That a committee of the Faculty Council be appointed to study the problem of evaluation and recognition of the contributions of staff members to the attainment of the College objectives in teaching and/or research and/or other activities." President's comment: "This may be worth while. Has often been attempted but never very successful. A palliative. If deans and department heads don't recognize the worth of an individual, other means are ineffective."

The proposal to reduce the number of one, two, and three hour courses was discussed. President Strand said he would appoint a committee on the matter.

The multiple problem of student preparation, ability, and attitude was discussed, together with some related questions. It was agreed to break down the problem for study of its different aspects and to give consideration to a report on terminal work prepared some years ago by a committee of the State System of Higher Education.

The proposal for an evaluation of faculty achievement in relation to institutional objectives was discussed. The President said he would appoint a committee to study and recommend concerning this matter.

President Strand pointed out that certain topics in the AAUP set of recommendations apparently were responsibilities of deans and department heads.

ADJOURNMENT The council was declared adjourned at 5:00 o'clock.

The Faculty Council assembled at 4:00 o'clock after an informal coffee period arranged by Professor Florence Hupprich. President Strand presided and the following members were present: Bash, Berry, Brandon, Bullis, Campbell, Clayton, Colby, Dixon, Dunn, Gilfillan, Gilkey, Goode, Hupprich, Langton, Lemon, Ledbetter, LeMaster, Lonseth, Lunde, McCutcheon, Morse (for Beach), Moshberger (for Demuth), Ordeman, Poling, Richardson (for Wanless), Scheel, Smith, Snodgrass, Strand, Swygard, Tressler, Wells, Winger, Yunker, Zeran.

COMMITTEE ON REVIEW AND APPEALS President Strand reported that the poll of mail on candidates for members of the Committee on Review and Appeals resulted in a tie for first place. A second vote was therefore necessary. Doctors Allison, Colby, and Swygard, former vice chairmen of the Faculty Council, served with the secretary in counting the ballots. Dr. J. W. Sherburne received the highest number of votes. Professor L. Q. Larse was next. President Strand said he was appointing Professor B. H. Nichols as the third member. Dr. Sherburne, he said, would be chairman of the committee.

HONORS AND AWARDS

President Strand said that, in order to avoid calling a special meeting of the council on short notice, the executive committee had approved the recommendations of the Committee on Honors and Awards, subject to confirmation by vote of the Faculty Council. After motion, the council confirmed the action of its executive committee and approved the following honors and awards:

Chi Omega Award, Sally Shideler. Elks Award, James Cordial. Drucilla Shepard Smith Award, Lou Seibert.

Cummings Prizes: Senior first honor, Arthur Chiu; honorable mention, Thomas Hoffette, Charles Dane. Junior first honor, Don Van Allsburg; honorable mention, Verlin Herman, Jack K. Jones. Sophomore first honor, Robert Estoup; honorable mention, J. B. Ball, Richard C. Davis. Freshman first honor, A. Paul Micka; honorable mention, Roland Dartau, Bill Noteboom.

Lipman Wolfe Prizes: Senior first honor, Janet Schadewitz; honorable mention, Donne Black, John Thomas. Junior first honor, Charles Hornecker; honorable mention, Elaine Yunker, Audrey Daum. Sophomore first honor, Tom Niebergall; honorable mention, Laura Davis, Joan Hobart.

Clara H. Waldo Prizes: Senior first honor, Janet Rutherford; honorable mention, Normita Ellis, Velda Brust. Junior first honor, Nancy Halladay; honorable mention, Alvis Miller, Phyllis Heilig. Sophomore first honor, Margaret McGowan; honorable mention, Sherrill Carlson, Molly O'Connor. Freshman first honor, Marilyn Wilson; honorable mention, Pat Daum, Rosalie Hanson.

Hamilton Award: Freshman woman, Marjorie Church. Sophomore man, John Hensala.

APPRAISAL OF TEACHING President Strand referred to the recent circulation among faculty members of a revised form for appraisal of teaching. He said that the committee hopes the form will be used by all staff members.

AAUP RECOM-MENDATIONS President Strand discussed further the AAUP recommendations for improvement of teaching and related interests. He said that the question of quarter versus semester system would require discussion by a joint committee with the University of Oregon if it is interested. He said it would be unlikely that the two institutions could have different schemes. He said he had not yet appointed the committees that he plans on the AAUP recommendations but would do so soon.

MISCELLANEOUS

President Strand read from a recent communication from the American Council of Education referring to a proposed federal amendment to the Social Security legislation would make faculties eligible. Dr. Campbell said that the AAUP has sent a letter to faculty members suggesting that they write to members of Congress on this matter. President Strand said that it would probably be desirable to have a special meeting of the Faculty Council later in May to act on candidates for degrees and hear a report from Dr. Allison's committee regarding a possible foreign university to be sponsored by Oregon State College.

TELEVISION

President Strand sketched developments in the direction of making television available for education. He referred to the large cost, the possibility of network services provided for educational stations by foundations and other agencies, and the special importance of television to Oregon State College with its state-wide program of adult education. Mr. Scheel spoke of a recent joint purchase by Oregon State College and the General Extension Division of a machine for sound film, a step toward production for television.

ADJOURNMENT

The Faculty Council adjourned at 4:40 o'clock.

President Strand called the Faculty Council to order in special session at 1:00 o'clock in Room 110 Commerce Hall. Present were: Berry, Bullis, Carlson, Colby, Crossen, Davies, Dornfeld, Gilfillan, Gilkey, Goode, Hansen, Hupprich, Langton, LeMaster, Lemon, Lonseth, Lunde, McCulloch, McCutcheon, Ordeman, Poling, Price, Read, Reichart, Robertson, Scott, Shideler, Smith, Snodgrass, Strand, Swygard, Tressler, Wanless, Winger, Wilkinson, Wood, Yunker, Zeran. Also present: Professors Allison, Blanch, Brandt, Butts, Campbell, Dietz, Dimick, Ellison, Engesser, Gilbert, J B Johnson, Martel, Melissa M Martin, McMillan, Ruzek, Shaw, Sherburne, Sinnard, Swarthout, Walls, Walter, and Yerian, and Director Robert Koehler and Assistant Director Erna Plageman. Jo Wyman was present representing Don Van Allsburg, vice president of the Associated Students.

SUGGESTED COOPERATIVE RELATIONSHIP WITH A FOREIGN UNIVERSITY President Strand sketched previous discussion in the Faculty Council in the interest of the establishment by Oregon State College of a cooperative relationship with a foreign university. He read a letter from the Mutual Security Agency and then called on Dr. I. S. Allison, chairman of a special committee, to report. Dr. Allison told of the work of the committee to date and said that the committee recommended investigation of the possibilities of cooperation with Kaesetsart University in Bangkok as especially suitable for Oregon State College. He summarized the advantages and disadvantages of Thatland as a strategic southeast Asia area. He said all costs of cooperation by Oregon State College with Kaesetsart University, if undertaken, would be met by the Mutual Security Agency. Questions and discussion were invited.

Dean Crossen moved that Oregon State College continue negotiations looking toward a two and one-half year contract if the report of Oregon State College representatives was favorable. After the motion was seconded, Dr. Allison in answer to a question, said that nothing would prevent Oregon State College entering into more than one such contract. He reported some details of the existing curriculum at Kaesetsart and its needs. On being put to vote the motion was declared carried.

ADJOURNMENT

The council adjourned at 2:00 o'clock.

Regular June meeting of the Faculty Council was held in Memorial Union 208 at 4:00 d'clock with President Strand presiding and the following members present: Berry, Blanch, Brandon, Bullis, Campbell, Clayton, Colby, Gilkey, Goode, Hupprich, Langton, Lunde, Morse (for Beach), Norton, Ordeman, Pfanner, Poling, Scheel, Shideler, Smith, Shodgrass, Strand, Tressler, Wilkinson, Wood, Yunker.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes of the meetings of March 13, April 10, and May 8 were declared approved.

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS ANNOUNCED

President Strand announced the names of faculty members whom he was appointing to new committees. Committee on Criteria for Evaluation and Recognition of Staff: A. T. Lonseth (chairman), J. C. Decius, J. R. Cowan, Helen G. Charley, J. W. Scheel, Frances Clinton. Committee on Preparation of Incoming Students and Related Problems: W. T. Cooney, W. F. McCulloch, P. C. Magnusson, R. W. Bergstrom, A. R. Poole, May DuBois, L. D. Coolidge, with Dr. Ordeman and Mr. Norton as consultants. Committee on Promotions and Tenure (to treat jointly with University of Oregon similar committee): C. V. Plath, L. Slegel, R. M. Highsmith. He invited suggestions for additions to these committees. He said he hoped that the committees on Objectives and Superior Students would have final reports to present within the coming year, perhaps by autumn.

PROBLEMS

MISCELLANEOUS President Strand then mentioned other matters that needed attention. For example, the need to study various curricular problems, such as curricula that are not operating within institutional regulations. This, he said, was a task of the Curriculum Council. Another example he mentioned was the promotion of honesty in student work.

CANDIDATES FOR DEGREES & SENIOR HONORS

The Faculty Council concurred in the approval of the lists of candidates for degrees and for senior honors at the 1952 commencement. These had been approved by the executive committee on behalf of the council. President Strand said that, while the ex post facto of the Faculty Council may seem perfunctory, authority regarding the granting of degrees rested with the Faculty Council. Degrees conferred at the 83rd annual Commencement June 9, 1952 were as follows:

School of Science: B.A., 8; B.S., 124. School of Agriculture: B.S., 171. School of Business and Technology: B.A., 4; B.S., 162. School of Education: B.A., 5; B.S., 112. School of Engineering: B.A., 4; B.S., 198. School of Forestry: B.S., 57; B.F., 2. School of Home Economics: B.A., 2; B.S., 68. Department of Nursing Education: B.S., 9. School of Pharmacy: B.A., 4; B.S., 48. Graduate School: M.A., 8; M.S., 118; Ed.M., 41; M.F., 6; M.H.Ec., L; M.E., 1; Ed.D., 4; Ph.D., 30.

Recipients of Senior Honors, earned by candidates for baccalaureate degrees at the 83rd annual Commencement, were as follows:

School of Science: David Dolph Nyberg, Richard Lawton Whitely, Laurus Waldemar Lehwalder, Arthur Nang Lick Chiu, Richard Leo Hutchens, Mary Angela Clancy, Joseph Sonnenfeld, Joseph Robert Werning, Gordon Grayson Knapp, Donald Richard Miedaner, Henry Theodore Norton, John Logan Beh, Owen Nelson Alberty, Joseph Gerald Toole.

School of Agriculture: Walter Frank Larsen, Wilbur Paul Breese, William John McNeil, Lester Elton Tibbets, Sidney John Pearce, Edward Makoto Watanabe, David Louis Kittock, Stanley Emmett Wellman, Melvin LaVerne Sutherland, Verna Jane Campbell, John Victor Bateman, Cecil Richard Stanton.

School of Business and Technology: Betty Jean Kindsfather, Dorothy Norma Pease, Normita Lagrande Ellis, Robert James Irish, Richard Martin Beck, Jerrel Thomas Doyle, Marilyn Jean Sound, Joann Elizabeth Marvin, Lester Harry Jochum, Carla Joanne Savage, Robert Stewart Cortright, Mary Margaret Adams, Gloria Jane Cline.

School of Education: Margery Jean Harlow, Arthur Rudolf Thompson, Jonlyn Sue Haner, Myron Damiel McCall, Robert James Laughter, Jeanne Arlyn Cortright, Alma Margaret Quier, Frederick Louis Laws, Beverly Ann Orton, Delpha Janet Schadewitz, Robert Raymond Wicks, George Elmer Allen.

School of Engineering: Thomas Robert Moffette, Gordon William Beecroft, Arthur Nang Lick Chiu, Earl Thorn Heckeroth, Leonard Joseph Weber, John Roland Roscoe, Donald Arthur Davis, Laurence Horner Dunklee, Eldon Oren Merklin, Marvin Archie Ring, Jr., Reuben William Peterson, David William Blair, Darrell Wayne Halligan, Lewis Embree Franks, Laurence Ronald Beach, Jr., William James Davis, Solon Allen Stone, Jacob Arnold Martzolf, David LeRoy Espey.

School of Forestry: Charles Wesley Dane, Clay Howard Anderson, Donald Emerson MacMenzie.

School of Home Economics: Norma Louise Seibert, Billie Leona Albin, Patsy Joan Addington, Alice Adele Reeves, Lorna Leffel Waltz, Chiyono Matsushima, Barbara Eileen Petrie.

Department of Nursing Education: Lois Claudene Torgeson.

School of Pharmacy: Carl Shefchek, David Lehnherr Scofield, Janet Marjorie Lekas.

ADJOURNMENT The council adjourned at 4:20 o'clock.

With President Strand in the chair, the Faculty Council, after a brief coffee period at ten minutes to four, met in its regular October meeting in Room 208, Memorial Union. Members present were: Berry, Blanch, Brandon, Bullis, Colby, Crossen, Dixon, Dornfeld, Forth (for Tressler), Gilfillan, Gilkey, Gleeson, Goode, Haith (for Wanless), Hansen, Hupprich, Korzan (for Wood), Ledbetter, Lemon, Lonseth, Lunde, Maser, McCutcheon, Morton (for Bash), Ordeman, Pfanner, Poling, Read, Reichart, Robertson, Scheel, Scott, Smith, Snodgrass, Stone (for Clayton), Strand, Swygard, Ware, Wilkinson, Yunker.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

No corrections having been reported on the minutes of the meetings of May 28, 1952 and June 12, 1952, the minutes were declared approved.

ON FACULTY SALARIES

AAUP ACTIVITY President Strand spoke of activity of faculty groups representing the American Association of University Professors in support of needed faculty increases in the next biennial budget.

> President Strand reported that Professor Potter, as a result of his recent visit to Thailand on behalf of Oregon State College under the Mutual Security Agency, had enthusiasm on reciprocal benefits for both institutions that might be derived through a cooperative arrangement between Oregon State College and Kasetsart University in Thailand.

PLANS

President Strand stressed the function of representatives of the schools on the Faculty in keeping in touch with the constituencies they represent. He referred to a number of matters that would be open for Faculty Council action or consideration during the near future: expected recommendations from the Curriculum Council and the Committee on Academic Requirements regarding group requirements; the possibility of a Committee on Committees to aid the President in making greater use of the interests and talents of faculty members in committee service; an invitation from the Fund for the Advancement of Education to join in a study of institutional objectives.

Dr. Hupprich said that Michigan State College was an example of an institution that had found a Committee on Committees useful.

Dr. Reichart, Mr. Scheel, Dr. Pfanner and others spoke on the values of a study of institutional objectives. The relation of a study under a special grant to the current campus study of objectives was considered. On motion by Dr. Swygard with second by Dean Gilfillan the Faculty Council voted to recommend that Oregon State College apply for a Ford grant for such a study.

ADJOURNMENT The Council adjourned at 4:45 o'clock.

With Dr. Hupprich, vice chairman, presiding, the Faculty Council met at 4:00 o'clock with the following members present:
Blanch, Bullis, Carlson, Colby, Dornfeld, Gilfillan, Gilkey, Goode, Granstrom (for Berry), Hupprich, Lemon, Lonseth, Lunde, Moser (for Ledbetter), Pfanner, Pickett, Reichart, Scott, Shideler, Shirley (for Clayton), Smith, Swygard, Tressler, Wanless, Ware, Wells, Wilkinson, Winger, Wood, Yunker. Also present: Dr. R. W. Henderson.

AAUP ACTIVITIES

Dr. Henderson reported on inter-chapter activities of the American Association of University Professors of the State with representation also from the National Education Association and the Oregon State Education Association. He spoke of a recent meeting in Bend which was attended by an average representation of eight to ten persons per chapter. He said a State System Federation of AAUP chapters was in process of formation. The Federation would have a coordinating council. Already, he said the Federation had been active through its Salary Committee in presenting memorials to the State Budget Director and the Governor. Dr. Henderson spoke particularly of the support President Strand had given the committee and of Chancellor Byrne's fine attitude and evident information on the problem. Dr. Henderson distributed copies of three charts that the committee had used in its presentation. He discussed the charts briefly and answered some questions.

STUDENT
PARTICIPATION
ON FACULTY
COMMITTEES

Dr. Hupprich read a memorandum from President Strand on the subject of student participation on faculty committees. The President invited discussion or comment. Dean Colby said students might be interested and helpful on certain policy forming committees. Director Carlson said some institutions have library committees including students. Dr. Pfanner said that doubtless many faculty members are not very clear on the function or even the existence of some faculty committees. Dean cilfillan spoke of a California college that has two students on its beard of regents. He said he thought it would be a good idea to have student representatives on most committees.

ADJOURNMENT

The Gouncil adjourned at 5:00 o'clock.

The regular monthly meeting of the Faculty Council was held at 4:00 p.m. with President Strand in the chair and the following members present: Bash, Beach, Beer (for Hansen), Berry, Blanch, Brandon, Bullis, Clayton, Colby, Crossen, Dixon, Dornfeld, Gilfillan, Gilkey, Goode, Hupprich, Langton, Ledbetter, Lemon, Lonseth, Lunde, McCutcheon, Maser, Pfanner, Pickett, Price, Read, Reichart, Robertson, Scott, Smith, Snodgrass, Strand, Swarthout, Swygard, Tressler, Wanless, Ware, Wells, Wilkinson, Winger, Wood, Zeran. Members of the Curriculum Council who were present were: Professors May DuBois, D. M. Goode (secretary), Eva M. Seen, J. W. Sherburne (chairman), W. D. Wilkinson. Others present were: Professors I. S. Allison, E. C. Allworth, S. H. Bailey, W. B. Bollen, J. J. Brady, H. B. Cheney, V. H. Cheldelin, B. E. Christensen, H. B. Cockerline, W. T. Cooney, G. B. Cox, G. T. Crews, W. A. Davies, S. M. Dietz, E. D. Duryea, J. W. Ellison, Margaret L. Fincke, H. C. Forslund, F. Grill, C. W. Hovland, H. Hartman, D. D. Hill, A. D. Hughes, H. D. Jenkins, J. G. Jensen, I. R. Jones, L. Kuhn, E. M. Litwiller, D. J. Martel, Melissa M. Martin, W. E. Milne, Helen Mulhern, Isabella McQuesten, C. A. Mockmore, H. B. Nelson, M. N. Nelson, O. M. Nelson, J. E. Parker, P. O. Ritcher, J. B. Rodgers, J. S. Schulein, J. N. Shaw, M. C. Sheeley, H. R. Sinnard, Clara A. Storvick, Gertrude Strickland, H. Ten Pas, R. B. Walls, T. P. Yerian. The session was preceded by a coffee period arranged by Dr. Hupprich.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes for the meetings of October 8 and November 14, 1952 were declared approved.

ANDERSON REPORT President Strand particularly the five chief recommendations on elementary teacher education. He said he believed the State Board of Higher Education would welcome an expression of the position of the Oregon State College faculty. He asked for discussion with regard to procedure and views.

Questions and discussion brought out the fact that while it was known that the recommendations at first were parallel in applying to the three Colleges of Education, the Portland State Extension Center, and Oregon State College, the final recommendations discriminated against Oregon State College in respect to supporting majors in humanities and social science. Dean Zeran said that Oregon State College already had the courses that would permit such majors. President Strand said it should be noted that the institution had requested and obtained these courses not for majors but as service and liberalizing courses for students majoring in other fields. Dean Colby said that no valid reason was apparent for discrimination against Oregon State College and he emphasized the need and usefulness of such majors in providing for Oregon State College a balanced general education

Meeting #78 - 2

program. Other members of the Council participated in the discussion. The Council after motion voted that the President with a committee including Deans Colby, Gilfillan, and Zeran and Professor Goode prepare a statement to go to the Board as an expression of the position of the Faculty Council, such statement to be submitted to the Council if practicable but to be sent without such formality if necessary.

CURRICULAR PROPOSALS FOR 1953-54 CATALOG Dr. Sherburne presented the report of the Curriculum Council on curricular proposals for the 1953-54 catalog. He expressed appreciation of the work of the members of the Curriculum Council and thanked all officers including department heads as well as deans and others for care in presenting and supporting their curricular requests. He distributed a mimeographed summary regarding policy and procedures of the Curriculum Council. The proposed curricular changes, on motion, were accepted with the addition of the following new course on page 11: CC 507 Seminar. Terms and hours to be arranged.

INDUSTRIAL ARTS CURRICULUM

Dr. Sherburne then referred to an unsettled question regarding the Industrial Arts Curriculum. The department had been unable as yet to revise the curriculum to keep it within the 192 term hours required for a degree through the School of Education. Dr. Sherburne then asked Professor Cox to outline the problem. Professor Cox distributed a two-page sheet containing an analysis of the curriculum. Discussion developed that no recommendation had been formulated except that the Curriculum Council had voted that the curriculum should either be reduced to 192 hours or transferred back to the School of Engineering. Mr. Goode said that if transfer of the curriculum were to be included in the curricular report to the Board, action would be necessary at the meeting as the report was due at the Chancellor's office December 15. The Council on motion voted to approve such transfer provided it had the recommendation of both deans concerned and the Curriculum Council.

JANUARY MEETING President Strand called attention to the fact that election to the Faculty Council should be held in December to take effect January 1 and that the annual election of Faculty Council officers and Executive Committee members would take place at the January meeting. He said that the Executive Committee urged Faculty Council representatives of schools to inform their colleagues of the functions of the Faculty Council and obtain suggestions for desirable agenda for Faculty Council meetings.

ADJOURNMENT

The Council adjourned at 5:25.

D. M. Goode Secretary